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S T R I C r L A N D. 

The following genealogy is from an-keJ"Landed Gent..ry"1900,p.1515, 
and from BurkeJ "A Histol7' of the Landed Gentry of Great Britain" 
1906,page 1605J augmented from "Ancestral Roots of Sixty Colonists 
Who Came To New England Det\iaen 1623 nnd 1650" by Fredrick Lewis 
Weis, Th.D.,pub. Lancaster Hase. 1950. 

Great and Little Strickland, Westmoreland, form one manor,and f'rom it 
the Strioklsnde of Sizergh, who resided there for many generations 
took their name. 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

7) 

8) 

9) 

10) 

Adam de St:lrkeland had a son 

Sir Walter de Striokland, Knt.,in the time of King John, his 
eon and heir was 

Sir Bobort ~.e Stirl::aland, hie ~ir r.as 

Sir William de Stirkelnnd or Sizergh (jure uxoris)and Great 
~ cltland,Oo. Westmoreland.He died 130.5-6,married 1239 to 
El.izab3th Deincourt (D1Eynoourt),daughter and heiress of Sir 
Halph Deinoourt of Sizergh and his wife Allee.Elizabeth died 
1272-3.llleir son and ha:lr,sea beloWJ·i;heir daughter Joans. 
married Robert de Washington (a.nceetor of Gen. George ) o.f Carnf'orth 

in Wharton, Lancaster. 

S:tr Walter de Stirkeland of SizorClJ,d.oa.1342 
~:uTied Eliz'lb3th Ooldinrrton. His Heir 
Si:r Thomas c.'.o Stireklancl of Sizer~. d.tJl/l.376. 
Unrried Cecilia de lVelJ.e(s),dau. of Sir Robert de .'fella. 
T'neir Children;- Sir •"'alter (:.>co below) 

John 
Peter 
Thomas 
Katherine, ro.. John de Ros. 

Sir Wo.lt~r de Stirkeland of Sizergh. d. l.407-80 
married fir et, !larearat, dau,. of Sir 'Il).omas Latham, mother of his iss ue. 
?.iarriP-d SPCOnd, Isc.bel, llaU. or Gir John Ol.l'le',f. 
Sir Thomas de Stricklruid o!: Sizergh. d.1455. 
Married Mabel, dau. of Ohn do Botham (Beethom). 
IssuoJ- Wnlta.• D'~·1eklnnj1 hio h0:lr,see below. 

Robert Strickland 
Cecille str1cklnnd1 m. William Redman. 

Wa1ter strickland of Sizergh. d.1467. 
Married J)owme Croft, clau of 1'!icholas de Croft. 
Iseue J- l!argaret Striokland,m. WiJ 1j em Rectm.:m. 

'l'!lomaa Strickla.nd,his heir see following. · 
Mabel Strioklo.nd, m. Sir Richard Teq>est of Gigglemok., 
Yark, and had Dawsc:.bol 'mo m.Sir Thomas iiarey,KG. 

Sir Thebal Strickland1knt.of Sit:ergh. d. 1497. 
l!a.IT1ed firet,Agnes Pa?T, oau.o!' »illlam Pa:rr, son of Sir '.Ihomas 
Parr and Ins wife 3li11abeth, one of' the three sisters and 

oo-heirt of Hanry, Lord FitzFkigh. 
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10) Sir Thomas (contimtecl) 
Marria4 seoomt,Kargery, wida)i of Sir John BJron. 
Issue, by tint w:lteJ• 

Wut~Stnc~od~smir,seeb~w. 
Thomas S"t.1-iokland 
Jane StrloJ<Jgnd m. Sir Thomas WdriJeton ot Betbam. 

11) Sir Walter Strickland. ot Silergh. 
Married Blimabeth Salkeld..(Waia sqs Eliz. Pemington) 

12). Sir Wa.1tar Strick] and, lent.of Sizergb..d.~28. 
?&aaded tirst,Agnes, dau. ot Riobard Redman, no issue. 
Married second, Oatherine 1 dau.. and co-heir or Ralph Neville 
ot Thornton Briggs1ao. York• and his wife Anne Ward dau. of 
Sh- Christoph.a- Wad. Catharine b.about 1$00. 
IssueJ49 Agnes Striokland m.S!r 'fhcmJas Our\ven ot World.DgtOD. 

El 1 nbeth Strickland m. W:t 1 Ji am Strickland of BoJnton.· 
Walter str1cklaDdt see following. 

13) Walter Strioklami of Sisergh and 'lhWDton Brial, LP it 
b.S Apn1 1Sl6J d.8 April 3$69. By his will dated 23 Jan.l.568-9 
he left L 200 to his natural daughter El.lea Strickland who 
married John Oarleton ot Beetord, eo,, York. She wasliving :1n 
1622, maUried 1582, 
Walter ma:rriad Alioe1 dau. of Nicholas 'fampest of Bolmsi• 1 Oo. 
Dllrham.. 
Issue1- Alioe Stricklam 

Tt).omas StrioklalJd, his heir, 

14) Sir Thomas striekl.and o8 Sizergh1 K.B.,M.P .for -Westmoreland 
he died 1615. Married twice, 
first to E1imabeth SJmon of Br18tol.1 who had om daughter 

Alice Svickland, m.Str Will iaJO Webb, knt. 
second to Margaret, dau ot Sir Nicholas C\lrwen,Jm.t. or WorJd.Dg\D 
with iosueJ-

Robert Stricklaml his heir, as belaw. 
Thomas Stt'iokland 
Walter Strickland et Nateby1 oo.Laneaster, anoesttr 
of Strickland& ot Catter1ek1C:u. York.JD. Anne,dau. ot 
Roger Orofts·ot East Appleton,Go. York 
Dol'ot!JT Striokl andt ~John Fleming ot 19'da1 
Margoet Striok1and,m.CJeGl9 Preston ot Holda-, Co.Ycwk. 

lS) Su Robert Striokland,Jmt.Qf' Sizer8h and Thornton ~s. M.P. t• 
Westmorland. He died 1670. He married Margaret, eldest daughter 
and co-heir ot Sir wu11am Al.ford o.t By1ton, Co. Yark. 
IsaueJ.. Thomas Strieldand, his heir, see belew 

Walter Striokl and,m. Barbara tourth daqhter ot HenrJ' 
Belab7881 who died l2 September 1708. 

Jlaroth1' Staaickland m. va,111am Clrhlstone ot OoodmaDham 
eo. York. 
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16) Sir '1'homas Striaklan~Jmt.,P.o. 
b.16211 d.. 8 Jan.169h in Frame. 

17) 

18) 

19) 

19) 

20) 

~lst.,Jaua,daughter and oe-be1r Of John Mosel.7 of Uakelte10o.York.. 
She bore two daughters who 8'JJ'Vi.ved 

l)Alice strioklartd• a.Sir Walter ltrkham Blunt,bart.ot SoddiJlgton. 
2)Jana Strioklam,m.Jobn Middleton et stockelct, eo. Yan. 

He marr.lad,!ncl) W1n:1f'rad.,daugbtar and oo-heh' or Sir Christopher Trentham, 
tmt. ,at Reoeater, 0o.1stat:r..a. with 1arnJ.e · ·· 

3) Walter Strickland, bis be!rt see belew. 
b.) Rebert Striokland1 a.utl1D81Tied 1112. 
S) Roger Striekl md, d• \IDl1IDT1ed, ap 21'. 
6) ThGmas Strf.eklaM,Bishap of Banmr, d. 3 Jan. 17hO. 

Walter Stri.okland 
b.12 Ma, 16TS. Married 1700 to Ame, daughteP or CJarraTd Sal.Tin 
of Cr•dale1 Oo.,Dat-ham, with issue 

l) Thomas Str1ol1 B1ld, bis heir,see below. 
2) Ga?Tard &trickla11d ot Ogletord;b.30 ~ 1704.See that lin •• 
3) Mary Strioklauci1 cl.unmarried 20 Augu.st 1720. 

Walter striokland of Sisergh1 be17 ~ 1729. Married 4 June 17S8 
to Margeret1daughtar ot Michael James ~ ot Fountd.n Abb97, 
Co.; York. He 0..B•P•· 6 ~ 1761, and bis next brother William, 
a Jesait (b. Oot.1731, d.. 23 April 1819) r9DCRD10ing, he was 
su.caeeded by a ywnger broth&rJ• -
Oharlea striolr1ml et Slsergh, b.6 Jul1' 1734• d. 6 ~. 1770• 
Marr!ed 22 April 1762 to Cecilla, ol41" daughter ot wn Uam Tewnela.T 
ot Tnneley,oo.Lanoaster,bJ' his wife Oeoilia,dau. and sole 8'D'V't.ving 
he:!J.o or Ralph Standish ot S~f.D the same eounty, and bad 
issae b7 her (who died 28 June 18 ) 

1) 'fhomas Strioltland; his hetr, see 'below. 
2) (Capt.) William Philip, b.28 Aug.J.764td.S•P• 18 Sept. 1795. 
3) Obarles Stri,eklaJJd, d. 13 Sept. 177)• 
l) Har1' Oee1Ua Strickland• us. 27 Peb.1786 to Edwe;rd 

Stephenson at Farley H:lll.s, Berks. 

Thomas striGkl.and ot Sisergll, b.Ju.11" 1763,d.4 Deo.1813. 
Married l st) 24 Feb. 1789, Anaatasiateldeet daughter ot Sir 
Jelm. Lawson,bart. ot Brough Hall, . Oo. York, with 1esu.e. 
Married 2 nd) Oatherine,daughta cat Sir Robert Gerard et Bryn, 

Oo., LamasterJ no issue. On the death ot his umle Edward 'lownelq 
Standish ot Standish, he inherited the Standish estates and assumed 

the am-name and arms ot Stand~sh bJ' ltoyal lisoeme 6 Ma, 1807. IssltaJ• 
1) Oharles ot Staad:fsh,oontim:ing the name ot Standish,(SGJ9 · 

Standish ot Standish.) 
2) Thomas Strickland of Sisergh and Borwiok Hall ., 

3) Anastasia Strickland 
4) Elizabeth Strickland 
S) Monica Striokland,m. Dec.1827 to Sir John Ger~bart,. ot 

nr,n,and d. his widow 4 liq •· 
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· 21.) Thomae Stfteklaa4 ot s-.ii,seoond s~b.lla. Sept 1793. 

Ma:rriedl.3 November 18111. to Mademoiselle Gaapar1ne Urau1e Ida, J91UJ18&t 
daughter otthe Baron da rt.naerlln Blaeldnpn. She mar.ded 2nd. to 
Comte de resemaao,. cl. 18k6. 
He died 1 sept.183S nth 188118 

1) Walt. Charles Svlok"and or Simergh 
2) He1V117 Charles str1Gkl.andtLieut. 69th. Foot,B.1827, d.unm 1852. 

22.) Walter Cbarlee 8WS.ok1and ot Siurgh Oaatle, J.P. & D.L,He was born 
S September 182S• Marled 1866 to Rosetta &mnalina1~ daughter ef 
Charles de Meclex ot Bru.sselaJ she died ll AugustlBuu, with isave 

l) Roger Walter Stria~ now of Blawith Grange 
b. 1l'Gftlllbtr18?2, m. 10 Bov.1897 to Annie Made 
llov4er1 h+h. daughter ot Joseph Rowley ot Dee Baak, Flints. 

2~ Ida Matilda StricklaaA,b.1967 
3 Mabel Susan Str!okl.an41 n.1869J d.unm.6 April 1897 
h Henrietta Maria Strickland, b.1871J m.1902 to Ha'rJ7' Bat'lal­

Rawley of l>ee Banke, Flints. 
5) M8l7 Ima strickland 'b11876J m.1903 to Franois Lord ot 

Ohudlelgh, DevonahDte. 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 
18.) Garrard Strioklud of Oglei'ord,second son of Walter Striokl.and and 

his vd.te,Amle Sa1rln. He •s born 30 Jul.7 1704 
Married l st. Mary Baplaal,&m. of William Bagenal et Bagenal., 
comrtY' Cari.. She died 9 April 17?4 with iesu.e• one SOllt2 daughters •. 

~ Married 2 nd. Um7" Bungate,da\llhter and heiress of Sfa- Francis 

19.) 

20.) 

.· 

Hungate of Saton, and widow of Sir ldward laacoigne, Bart. ot Barbow1 
Yarks. He died 1 Sa•11ba- 1791t suooeedad b7 bis cml1' son.Issue 

1) Garrard .ldward St?iokl aJICl, his hair. 
2) :Mary Strtokl and 
3) Oecilla Stncklanc:t. 

Garrard Edward Striokland of Willito.ft, Yorks. 
b. 4 October 17411 d.. 23 Ootobar 179S. . 
Married lJ April 1119 to Oeoilia TGW1l9leT,dau.ot and in her iesue 

heiress of William fawneley ot Townsley, I.ancasbtre,aad widow et 
Charles (19) Stri.okland of Sisergh.She ct. 28 June jJ 1814 

l} George Strlckl.and, b.23 Ootober 1780 .. d.s.p. 
2) Garrm'd ldward Strickland, who saceeeded. 
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STRIOKLANJ>1 Baronet of Bpnton. CJO!l!!tT York, 

·(]j) The fOlUldar et the Boynton branch of the fam:lly was Roger Striok1'1'¥f4 
ot M&l9sk, (supposed to be a YOlll.lltW l:maneh o.f the house ot Sizergh) 
who married Mar.J' AppletonJ their son and heir was,• 

(13) William Strioklamt,he obtained a grant ot arms 1n l5So. 
Married Elizabeth Striokland1eldeet daughter o£ Sir Wal.tar Striokland 
of Sizergh by Gatherina Neville. Wi11 :tam d1etd at an advanced age in 
1598 leaving two sons~- Wal.tat-, see below 

William Strick' am of Easton.m..J$8) to 
Oatherine Cartaill ot Saww]1'. 

(lb) Walter Striokland ot B01Jrl;on. 
Mar!-ied Frances• daughter of Peter WEllltYIGrth of Lillingston Da1rell, 
Bucks. They had tour daughters and two sons,-

1) Sir wuuam Str:loklami,see below 
2) Walter Strickland, a supporter of Cromwell who cal.led 

him to Parliamsnt as Lord Walte Striokl.and. 

(1)) Sir Wil]jam Strickland, lat. Baronet. of Doynton,oreated 30 Jul.1" 16bl. 
Married 1st. 16 June it;22 to Margaret,Daughtei~ of Sir Richard 

Cholml.q, Int.She died 1629 leaving 4 daughters,Fl'ancea1 
Margaret, Miloha, and Ellmabeth. 

Married 2nd. Lady Frances Fimh-el.dest daughter ot 11homas,tirst lai- l 
or Winchilsea, by whom he bad an onl.1' son. 

He died l.673. 

(16) Sir Thomas Strickland,2nd.Baronet, of Boynton. He died 1684. 
Married 16~9 to lllizabeth,daughter and heiress of Sir Franois Pile• 
Baronet• Th~ir ehildren,-

1) William, 3rcl. Bart. see below. 
2) Walter, b.1667 ,married with 2 sons,ome daughter. 
3)Thomae, b.l.669. 
4) Charles,b.1672,Admiral in R.N.1died 1724. 
1) Frances,m .. J.679 Sir Richard Osbaldeaten,Knt. 
2) Jane, died 1662 
3) Elizabethtdied J.664 
4) AmetM• John Smith,Speaker of the House of' Commons .. 
S) Frames. 

(17) Sir WiUfmn Strickland, 3rd,, Baroney1 M.P. 

(18) 

(U) 

Married 1684 to Eluabeth,da.ughter and enentu.all7 sole ht111r of 
William Falmes or Lind1911 their eldest son, .. 

Sir William Strickland, 4th., Baronet. Died 1735. 
Married Catharine,daUghter ef Sir Jere1111' Sambroke,Knt,.ot Gubbins, 
Herta. They had ow son and one daughter,-

Elize.beth,m.J ohn Freeman o£ Chute Lodge. 
GeOJ'flil, his heir,. see f oU.nng. 

Sir George Str~okland,Sth. Bar0118t1b. Uaroh 1729td. 13 Jan.1808. 
Married 2S Novemberl7Sl to Elizabeth Letitia, 3rd. daughter or 
Sir Rowland Wim (4th.Bart.) ot Nostel. She d. 18131with isauaJ• 

( 889 next page) 



(19) 

(20) 

(21) 

OhUdl'ea of Sir George Striekland, Sth. Brtt. 
1> wn11am s•utlaat, 6th. Ban. aee belew, 
2 )Cleoqe StrloklaH, See Striftl am ot Apperl.97. 
3) Walter stri.oklaad ot rJ.amborou&'b,ao. Yark,m. with isne. 
4) He1117 hstatius Strioldand, m. with 1sme. 
S) 1.1.babeth Striokland,m. her aoudn Striokland l'reeve. 
2) Charlotte Striokla.d,d. umn.2 JtlDS 1833. 
3) Juliana Sabina striokJand, cl. 21 Sept. 1816. 
4) Sophia laetitia Striekland, DIBl'rie4 twice. 

Sir WilJSam str1okland1 6th. B~ ot ~b.12March17S31 
died 8 J~ 1834. Manied lS April 1178 to Heilrietta, third 
daughterJf and co-heiress ot !lathmdel Ohelmle.v of Whitby and 
~ Oo. York. Shed. 26March1827• with imue,-

1) Walter, b .. 10 Feb.17801 de JS April. 1798. 
2) George, 7th• Bot. see below. 
3~ Artlmr,b. 2S. Feb.• 178h,d.. 27 HOV'el863,m.l.8 Jul;y 1854 • 

. 4 ldmmi4,died 70UJJB• 
S ~, b. 9 June 17871 ct. June 1840. 
6) John,b. 2h Jan.1794, m. Bliaa Wood. 
7) (Rev'.) lathamel Constantine, b. 7 89t• 1798, a. twice with 

lane b.r second wife who d.21 Deo.1877 .• 
1) Henrietta, d!ed 1l111Sft'lecl.· 
2! OaT0111ie, married with issue* 
3 Emma, maJ'riecl d.••P• 
4 Ama, lltD'r!ed with issue. 
~ )Prtaelll.a, 1D81ri.ed with ieSlle• 
6) Isabell a, ct. 12 JuJ7 18lh.. 

Sir George Ohol.mleT (Stri.ekland) 7th. BaroDA1 MeP• 
Born 26 mw.1182, died 23 Deo.18Tk, married twioe, t:lrst 1' 30 Mareh 
1818 to Marrt 01i17 child ot Rev.Charles Oonstable of Wassend, Oo. 
York. She died 10 Jan. 1865 w.l.th isw.ee He ma.:rrAed (2nd.) 2S 1lq 1867 
to June (who d.ea.p. 19 Oat. 1898) eldest Dau. of !hOJOSB Leavens. 
Sir Ge~ and his heirs male,by rOJ'Bl -H#/:# lisoenoe da1ied 17 
March 18651WllN authcriBed to take the 81D'D8DlD Cho'm'q 1n lietl 
et Strick'and• iasue,-

1 l Oharles WU' 1am Ohelmle7, 8th. Baronet. 
2 Frederick, b. 1880, d. ]J Oat. 1849. 
3 Hanry Stri~le, mJ with issue. 
l Luq Henrietta, Die with issue. 

Reference, Burke's Peerage 1905, page 1Sl9- l521. 
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STRIOKLABD ot Apparlq Court. page a. 
(20) George Strickland of Newton,ad Chestnut Grove, Yorks. 

He was the second son of Sir George Striakland, Sth. baronet ot 
BoJnton by Blhabeth Letitia his wite1 daqhter ot Sir Rowland 
~ 4th. baronet of Nostel. 
He was bora JO November 1760,. died S June 1832. · 
Married 2s September 1792 to JllJ'.19 meaner araas,daughter and 
co-heiress of OhristophEr Oraggs,ot Houghton Le Spring1Darham. 
Issue, 

1) Walt.- strlokland of OheS'tnut Grove, Yorks. 
born lS Aupat 1793,d!ed 31 Jul7 187S 
1J&Wied 27 December 18391 1ssue Ii sons, 6 dalaght.en. 

2) ~les Strickland of Naples 
died 11 April 1862, llarried 23 April 1832 to Klima.beth 
Mary Deaoon,eldaat daqhter of IJemT Deaoon ot Longorosa 
Ho11se. Sha died 23 Deoember 1870J 1 son, 2 daughters. 

3) (Rev.) !homaa Altred striekland of Brecton. Worcester. 
Born 6 Jama17 1802, died 7 NOV'embm- 18S2 
Married 19 Deoambar 18h0 to Anne Catherine Fltzgeralil 
Issae,two sons and one daughter. 

4) Aug\tst.1.ne Edmund Christophe Str1cklad,o.t Oaklands•.Devon. 
Born 1808, died 1892. 
UmTie4 August l83S to Susan Caroline .Deaocn of Lo!lgarose 
Ho11s~ daughter ot Hem7 Deacon. 
Sha died 1882 having issue, two sons. 

·/ 
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Reference. 

"The Early History of the Stricklan-is of Sizergh. 11 

by S.H.Ise ,,'fashington, M.A. The Rumford P1:eas, Boston, Mass. 
Reprinted with additions, from ·t.be New England HistoriaaJ. and 
Genealogical Register. 

Thie book reports a very thorough and d.etaiied etudy' into the ancient 
history oft.he Strickland family and some related lines. The two charts 
appended are ilrom this book. 'J.'ha cbn.rts sliO'.'i two points of difference 
fromthe pedigroe in Bill .. ke 1 s "Landed Gentry" the most important is the 
insertion of one extra g~nat'ation between (2 )Sir 17al.tEr de Strickland 
and (3) Sir Robert do Striokland. The other difference ls in the f:Lc·st 
nama of one of the n"lves. 

The book carries the pedigree back an additional four gana:ra·cions. 

I 
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THE CONNECTION OF THE FAMILIES OF STRICKLAND, 
WASHINGTON, AND CARLETON 

Robert de Vaux, seigneur de Vaux in l\ormandy, 1050. = 
I 

I I 
Aitard de Vaux, 
of Surlinsha.m 
(d.s.p.) . 

Robert de \'aux, = ['dau. Hubert de 
of Pentney, co. I Munchensy]. 
Korfolk, 1086. .. 

flueth, a nati vc chief- = 
tain, living 1080. I 

I 
Hubert de \ 'au."<, yn~. son,= Grace--- . 
1st Norman lord of Gils-
land, co. Cumb. (d. t 164). 

I I 

I 
Gilles, lord of Gilsland, = 
co.Cumb.,1 121. I 
I 

Bucth 'barn', son and heir. = 
I 

I 
?Eustace de Vaux, of Castlecarrock = dau. and co-heiress. R obert, d.s.p. 
and Bampton in Gilsland, t t 70. I 

A. 

I 
Adam de Vaux, alias de Castlccarrock, = 
of Castlecarrock (and Torcrossoc?). I 

I 
Walter fitz Adam, alias de Strickland, = Christian de Lcteham (heiress of 
yngr. son (d. 1236-9). I Great Strickland, co. Wcstd.). 

I 
Robert de Strickland, = Beatrice de Cotcsford , who mar. (2nd) 
yngr. son (d.v.p.). I Robert de Wethercd. 

I 
Sir Robert de Strickland, = sis. Master William de Genellcstanc. 
of Great Strickland (d. 1278). I 

I 
Sir William de Strickland, of Sizergh, = Elizabeth d'Eyncourt 
co. Wcstd., jurc uxoris (d. 1305-6). I (d. 1272-6) . 

I 
William de Strickland, = Margaret (?de 
1. a nd h. (d .s.p. by Washington), 
1288). who mar. 

(2nd) Sir 
Hugh de 
Laval. 

Sir Walter de Strickland, = (!st) Eleanor 
of Sizergh, 2nd son I de Goldington 
(d. ca. 1342). (mar. 1295-6; 

I 
divorced 1298). 

= (2nd) ? Maud. 

Sir Thomas de Strickland = Cecily de 
(d. 1376). I Welles. 

B. 

.- .,.,. 

A. B. 
I 
' 

I 
Sir Walter de Strickland (d. 1407- 8). = (1st) M argaret de Latha m. 

I 

I = (2nd) Alice, who mar. (2nd) 
Thomas Warcop. 

Sir Thomas de Strickland (d. 1455) . = 1'.fab<' l de Bcetham. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~' 
I 

Walter Strickland (d. 1467). = Douce Croft. 
I 

I 
Sir Thomas Strickland (d. 1497). =(!st) Agnes Parr. 

I 

1 
= (2nd) Mari;aret Fowlchurst, 

widow Sir john Byron. 

Sir Walter S trickland, K. B. = Elizabeth Pennington, widow of 
(d. 1506). I -- Salkeld. She mar. {3rd) 

Sir Richard Cholmeley, and {4th), 
Sir William Gascoigne. . 

I 
Sir Walter Strickland = Elizabeth Neville, who mar. (2nd) 
(d. 1528). I Henry Burgh; mar. (3rd) - - Darcy; 

and mar. (4th) William Knyvctt. 

I 
Walter Strickland, of Sizergh, = (1st) l\!argaret Hamcrton. 
co. Wcstd. (d. 1569). 

I 
= (2nd) Agnes --. 

= (3rd) Alice Tempest, widow of 

I 
Christopher Place. She mar. 

---~ _

1 

------' (3rd) Sir Thomas Boynton. 

Sir Thomas Strickland, K. B. =(1st) --- Seymour. 
(1563-1612). =(2nd) Margaret Curwen. " 

+ ; . 
LORD STR1CKLAND. , 

Ellen Strickland (half-sister of Sir Thomas), = John Carleton, of Bccford, 

mar. by 1582. 1 co. Yor~-.:d. 1623). 

foan de Strickland,= Robert de Wa!hington . . 
mar. 1292; living I of Carnforth in Warton, 
1324. i- co. Lanes. (d. 1324). 

W ASlllNOTONS OF VIRCINIA. CA.iu.ETONS OF MAssACHUDTTS. 
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I 

PEDIGREE OF D'EYNCOURT AND LE FLEMING 
Michael I. le Fleming, = dau. Robert de Stuteville. 
of Aldingham, fl. 1127-50. j 

I 
Michael II. le F leming, fl. 1160-80. = Christian de Stainton. 

I 

I I 
Anselm le Fleming, yngr. son; d. 1210-17. =Agnes of Dunbar. 

! 

Gospatric II., Earl of Dunbar,= Sybil, ? sis. and h. 
d. 1138. jWinnoe of Beanley. 

I 
Edgar "Unnithing". =Alice de Greystokc. 

I 

Gervase d'Eyncourt, grantee of Sizergh 1175-80. = 
I 

I I I I I I 
Eleanor Jc Fleming. = Ralph d'Eyncourt, Robert d 'Eyncourt, 

of Sizergh; d. 1228-33. fl. 1210-15. 
Erneburga. = Richard de Preston. 

+ 
wbcl. =Thomas fitz John. 
daughter. = Patrick de Barwick. 

+ 
I 

Avice de Applethwaite. = Peter d'Eyneourt, jure ux. I of Applcthwaite. 

~I -1~~~~ I I 
Sir Ralph d'Eyncourt, Gervase d'Eyncourt, 
of Applethwaite; fl . 1300. d.s.p. before 1271. 
? Adam d'Eyncourt, chaplain. Richard d'Eyncourt, 

d.s.p. before October 1271. 

I 
Sir Ralph d'Eyncourt, =Alice, ? dau. and coh. 
of Sizergh; d. ca. 1251. I William de Thursby. 

I 
Sir William de Strickland,= EHzabeth d'Eyneourt, 
jure ux. of Sizergh; j heiress of Sizergh; 
d. 1305-6. t m. 1239, d. 1272-6. 
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JOHNATHAN STRICKLAND an early settler of Springville Township 

Some half c entury ago we were giv en an old family record from 
a house where Stricklands had live for a hundred years . The 
infor mat ion in the record made us doubt seriously the identity of 
JOHNATHAN STRICKLAND g iven i n t he Northeastern Pennsylvania 
Commemorative Biographical Record printed i n 1900 by Beers . On 
pages 1072 & 1278 i t is stated that his father was Stow Strickland 
who was born in England and settled early i n Connecticut a nd that 
his son, Jonathan might have been born in Waterbury. 

An exhaustive search in Connecticut town records failed to show 
any man by the name of Stow Strickland for none had ever lived in 
that state. But there were nearly a ~ozen men by the name of 
Jonathan Strickland who were born in Connecticut during the period 
when the Springville man was born. However none of them had been 
born in Waterbury. Having disposed of· stow Strickland as a 
fictitious person, the next enigma was to find the actual parents 
of the JONATHAN STRICKLAND who eventually settled in Springville 
Township. 

Attorney Burroughs A. Strickland of Albion, New York, was very 
anxious to locate his lineage and came to interview Stricklands in 
Springville Township, in 1958. His great ·grandfather was Jesse 
Strickland of Washington County, New York. The latter had a 
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brother Guy Strickland and two sisters. The attorney had found a 
Jonathan Strickland living in the area where Jesse Strickland lived 
and hoped the Strickland Hill families could help him. He found no 
information here. 

Several years later Miss Elta Blanahe Strickland of Strickland 
Hill gave us the address of the Attorney-at-Law. His first letter 
was dated 13 February 1963. He referred us to Anson c. Lowitz of 
Greenwich, Connecticut, who had done extensisve research in all of 
the Connecticut Vital Records, land and probate files in the entire 
state. He was considered the best informed person on stricklands 
particularly in the New England branches. Mr. Lowitz was prepared 
to print a Strickland Genealogy, when his death destroyed the 
project. 

Mr. Lewi tz acquainted us with an English Magazine entitled 
"Country Life" published in 1954, which had articles on BOYNTON 
HALL, the origin of the Strickland family in England. These 
articles state that Stricklands participated in the Battle of 
Hastings in 1066 A. D. Also a young boy, William Strickland of 
Marske came to mainland United States as a cabin boy with Sabastian 
Cabot in 1497. While here William caught some young turkeys and 
took them back with him to England where they thrived in profusion. 
From that time the Strickland family adopted the wild turkey as 
their crest on the Strickland coat of arms. It was also stated in 
these articles that General George Washington in his maternal lines 
had descended from these Stricklands in Westmoreland, England. 

Attorney B. A. Strickland's maternal grandfather was the Rev. 
Eggleston Burroughs of East Burlington, Bradford County, Pennsylva­
nia, a Baptist clergyman. He made a record of the many Stricklands 
in this county which he had known and also those in Bradford 
County. This had been of great assistance in solving the riddle of 
Stricklands in this area. 

Miss Elizabeth Horton, professional genealogist of Middletown, 
New York, in a letter to us in 1964, found that Samuel and Jonathan 
Strickland had signed the allegiance to the Committee of Safety and 
Observance; and that · Eli and Jonathan Strickland h~d signed an 
allegiance to the Revolutionary Committee and Pledge of Associa­
tion, on 26 June 1775, in the District of Mamakating (now Deerpark 
and Mount Hope in Orange county, recorded in Ruttenber's History of 
Orange County, page 65). She proposed the theory that these three 
Strickla~d men were related, traveling together, and that all three 
had enlisted in the Orange County Militia, Fourth Regiment, under 
Colonel William Allison. Also in this Regiment were Abraham and 
Jacob Strickland who might have had some relationship to the 
others. 

Searching Connecticut vital records later showed in Simsbury, 
an Edward Strickland born 9 July 1701 in Simsbury, son to Elizabeth 
Chapman and Joseph Strickland. The marriage of this Edward was 
recorded in Simsbury (V.R. vol. 3. p. 323) when he married Rebekah 
Slater on 22 July 1734. Also recorded in Simsbury are three of 
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their cbildren (ibid p. 221): Samuel born 24 April 1735; Jonathan 
born (no~date in printed copies); Eli born 15 February 1738/9. We 
were not: shown the original record book, only a typed copy. The 
clerk could not verify that Jonathan's birthdate was not in the 
original, nor if the page had been torn, or date blotted. However 
the date· of birth for this Jonathan was in other records which 
places b.im in this family in the same order, the second child. We 
were abl~ to prove later that Miss Horton's theories were correct. 

Unfttrtunately Attorney B. A. Strickland died at Albion, New 
York, 17 September 1968, and the research of all of the above 
personsieventually terminated. A file of correspondence from them 
to us is., now in our Historical Society. 

Another person should be mentioned who did much research on the 
southern and western Strickland families: Mrs. Buford c. Curtis 
(Mary Barnett Curtis) of Fort Worth, Texas. She was then editor 
and publ.isher of the Strickland Family Magazine. She printed 
family records, queries and historical information on Stricklands. 
She filed all the data she could find on index cards and had many 
thousand Strickland names with origins. She was a clearing house 
where a.11 inquirers could find Strickland families. Her first 
letter ~o us was dated 12 April 1963. She suggested a search in 
the Si&bury families for the Jonathan Strickland we wanted to 
locate .. · .. The Strickland Family Magazine soon ceased publication and 
apparen:tly her records did not result in a book form. 

The~hext plan was to find a.professional genealogist who was 
willing·and capable of proving the identity of Jonathan Strickland, 
with complete documentation and lay to rest all of the speculation 
and myt!:ls in this branch of the Strickland Family. 

It was suggested to us by the New England Historic Genealogical 
Society.~;. in Boston to retain Dr. Claude Willis Barlow of Clark 
University, Worcester, Massachusetts, a professor of Classical 
Language.?. He responded affirmatively to our request and remarked 
that he ·had long been interested in untangling the "Strickland 
geneal~ical mess". This proved to be a very expensive venture for 
us, not.because the costs were excessive, but due to the expense, 
travel and labor involved. 

;.:,: 

Dr.·· Barlow was able to identify positively every Jonathan 
Strickland in Connecticut and make biographies of all of them. 
Thus he': proved that the Simsbury family- was the only possible 
origin ."pf JONATHAN STRICKLAND of Springville. Through his 
inspections of records in orange County, New York, he found 
conclus.j.ve proof which definitely showed the migration of Jonathan 
strick~nd from Simsbury to Springville. Each time the original 
town records showed his route. 

~ 

Dr.·; Barlow made a five generation family record from the 
immigrant of all Stricklands in New England, and did intensive 
study of all Connecticut stricklands. This research is now in the 
New E~gl.and Society. We hope some interested person will put all 

::t 
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this research'~n print, book form preferably, for posterity. 
'l'ii 

Dr. Barlow died very suddenly on 20 January 1976, in his home 
in Worcester, Wihile he was still in the rich prime of his life. He 
was as well i~ormed on Colonial New England families as any person 
of his generation. His heirs gave all of his genealogical library, 
files, correspondence, and records to the New England Society for 
preservation. ~All Strickland researchers must acknowledge their 
debt to Dr. Barlow for all his work on the Strickland family and 
for our inter~t in this family which has caused this research to 
be done, at private expense. 

The proven lineage of JONATHAN STRICKLAND follows: 

I JOHN STRICR:taAND, immigrant, came from the County of Westmoreland 
~:r. England. He was an original settler of 

Charlestown, Mssachusetts, in 1629-30. 
He was made a freeman in 1631 and was a member of the church in 
Watertown, Massachusetts. He lived in Wethersfield and Fairfield, 
Connecticut, :then moved to Hempstead, Long Island, and finally 
lived in Jama:ilca, L. I., where he died a widower, in 1672. His 
children usuai;i.y are given as: 

t·· 
1. Edmund Strickland of Middleburg, Long Island 
2. ~hn Strickland junior of Wethersfield, Connecticut 
3. :Jg)nathan Strickland of Wethersfield, Connecticut 
4. Pteter Strickland of New London, Connecticut 
5. Samuel Strickland of Long Island 
6. Elizabeth who married Captain John Seaman 
7. Jlipanna who married Jonas Woods of Halifax, Long Island 
8. D,lwaite Strickland of Westerly, Rhode Island 

II THWAITE S!!RICKLAND was in Dedham, Massachusetts, in 1643. 
He married Elizabeth Shepard, who joined 
the church there, 3 May 1650. Later he 

moved to Westerly, Rhode Island, "in the Narragansett country" 
where he was employed by General Gookin. He removed to Hartford, 
Connecticut, dlere he died about 1670. Their proven children were: 

1. Elizabeth born 31 March 1647, married Samuel 
~ Andrews of Hartford, Connecticut. 

2. ~ohn Strickland born 14 February 1648/9, married 
Esther, daughter of Richard Smith. 

3. &ebekah baptized 19 January.1651 in Dedham. 
4. ~oseph Strickland born about 1654, married 

~ Elizabeth Chapman. 
5. acnathan Strickland 2d born about 1657. 

III JOSEPH S~ICKLAND was born in February 1654/5 in Dedham, 
~ and· was fifteen years old when his father 

died in 1670, in Hartford, Connecticut. 
He married im Windsor, Connecticut 11 December 1684, Elizabeth 
Chapman. She was born in Windsor 15 January 1667/8, daughter of 
Elizabeth Fox and Edward Chapman. Joseph and Elizabeth Strickland 
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settled in Simsbury, Connecticut, where their children were born: 

1. Elizabeth born 29 Januaray 1685 
2. Hannah born 26 May 1687, married Joshua Moses 
3. Joseph Strickland born 19 August 1689, died 

unmarried 13 April 1714, his mother adminis­
trated his estate. 

4. Mary baptized 3 April 1692, and died unmarried 
15 July 1714, soon after her brother, Joseph. 

5. Samuel Strickland born 14 November 1697, married 
first Sarah Hill and second Tamer Younglove 

6. Edward Strickland born 19 July 1701 and was one 
and one-half years old when his father died. 

Joseph Strickland died in Simsbury, 9 February 1702/3 and his widow 
administered his estate. She deeded property to her son, Edward, 
on 15 August 1741. 

IV EDWARD STRICKLAND was born in Simsbury, 19 July 1701, and 
was married there, 22 July 1734 to Rebekah 
Slater, daughter to Elizabeth Case and 

John Slater, and a granddaughter to Joshua Holcomb. Rebekah was 
born in Simsbury, 29 February 1710 (sic). Known children of them 
were: 

1. Samuel born 24 April 1735 
2. Jonathan born 22 November 1736 
3. Ele born 15 February 1738/9 
4. Phebe who married James Hough 

There is no probate for Edward Strickland in Connecticut. He moved 
from Simsbury to Norfolk, Litchfield, County, CT., and sold his 
holdings in Simsbury in 1753. 

Edward Strickland bought land in Litchfield County, Connecticut, on 
7 March 1760, his son, Samuel did the same. Rebekah Strickland was 
called a widow on 29 August 1760, when she deeded land which she 
had inherited from her uncle, Samuel Slater of Simsbury. This 
shows that Edward Strickland died between 7 March and 29 August 
1760. No death date has been found for his widow, Rebekah. 

V JONATHAN STRICKLAND, son to Rebekah Slater and Edward Strick­
land, was born in Simsbury, Connecticut, 
22 November 1736 and died in East Spring­

ville, Susquehanna County, Pennsylvania·, 3 July 1816, aged 79 
years. He was married 5 November 1761,' in Granville, Massachu­
setts, to SUSANNA STOWE. At the same. time, same place, and 
recorded together in t~e vital records of Granville, his sister 
Phebe Strickland was married to James Hough. Susannah Stowe was 
born 24 October 1744 in Middletown, Connecticut, a daughter to 

·.Sarah Briggs and Jeremiah Stowe. She died in East Springville, 25 
November 1815, aged 71 years. 

Jonathan Strickland lived in Simsbury and .. Norfolk, Connecticut, 
until sometime before the Revolution, when he moved to Orange 

-31-



County, New York, where he lived some twenty years. His brother, 
Samuel enlisted in the French and Indian Wars and fought in Canada. 
During this time the three brothers were living together in Orange 
County, in the Minisink area. 

Jonathan Strickland before 1790, crossed the Delaware River 
from Orange County, New York, and settled in Upper Smithfield 
Township, Northampton County, Pennsylvania. He was enumerated 
there in the 1790 census: himself, his wife, two males and one 
female. There is no record in Easton to show that he owned 
property before Wayne County was set off from Northampton in 1798. 
Deed Book volume 1 in Honesdale has a record of his holdings. The 
record shows that Jonathan Strickland had a tract of land which was 
surveyed by the Land Office in Harrisburg, which he sold when he 
came to Springville Township. On page 212, it is stated that the 
Stricklands were located near a stream of water called "Reamers 
Creek," three miles up stream from where the creek emptied into the 
Delaware River. It mentions a stone house on his land and a mill. 
This mill was held as tenants in common with Jonathan Strickland 
junior and Jeremiah Rosencrants, the latter owned one half of the 
mill and had married a daughter of Jonathan Strickland Sr. This 
spot where they lived is now Shohola Township, Pike County, 
Pennsylvania. Pike County was set off from Wayne in 1814. 

Jonathen Strickland's holdings were part of the Properietary 
Patent of date 15 March 1775, and a chain of title is given, the 
previous owner being one Henry Vanvleck, called Gentleman of 
Bethlehem, Northampton County, Pennsylvania. The mill was one mile 
east of the stone house of Jonathan Strickland Sr. on the road 
toward the "River Delaware," Susannah Strickland, wife of Jonathan 
Sr. signed the deeds giving her dower rights with the properties. 

The Federal Census for 1800 in Upper Smithfield Township, Wayne 
County, the enumeration for Jonathan Strickland Sr. shows him as 
head of a family, his wife and youngest child were living in their 
stone house at Shohola Falls. In 1810, they were living in 
Bridgewater Township (which after 1814 was Springville) with the 
same family members. 

The names of all the children of Jonathan. and Susannah 
Strickland have not been recorded in this area. They may have had 
as many as eight or ten. Family members remember relatives living 
in Allentown and Easton. Those known to us are: 

1. Jonathan Strickland junior born 21 October 1772 
married Polly Sutton 

2. Sally Strickland born about 1774 
married Jeremiah Rosencrants 

3. Isaac Strickland born in the Minisink Region of 
orange County, New York, living in 1810 beside 
his father in Bridgewater Township, 
Susquehanna county, aged 26-45 years. He 
apparently left this area and has not been 
located elsewhere. 
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4. Susannah Strickland married Samuel Sutton 
5. Sylvester Strickland, the youngest child, born 

7 August 1791, married Rachel Taylor 

Jeremiah Rosencrants came to Springville Township, in 1807, and 
made a settlement northeast of the village, and engaged in mill 
work. The next year, Jonathan Strickland junior came and settled 
on the plateau of what is now called "Strickland Hill" in Spring­
ville Township. A few years later Jonathan Strickland Sr. came and 
settled on a farm on the northwesterly side of Strickland Hill, and 
built a log house at the foot of the hill near Meshoppen Creek. It 
was here that Jonathan Stickland Sr., his wife, Susannah, their 
son, Sylvester, and his son, Theron, spent their lives. The farm 
passed out of the Strickland name, many years ago, but descendants 
of the Stricklands have continued to own and operate the farm. 

Recently a government grave marker has been placed in the Lynn 
Cemetery, Springville Township to honor Jonathan Strickland Sr. 
The only authority for his burial there is given by Miss Blackman 
in her history that Jonathan and Susannah Strickland were mentioned 
by family members as having been buried there. The exact spot 
where their dust lies has long since been forgotten. 

Strickland descendants using the patriotic service of Jonathan 
Strickland Sr. have joined the Sons and Daughters of the American 
Revolution. Those of the Strickland name by either parent are 
eligible to join the Order of Founders and Patriots of America. 
This is a heritage of which all descendants can be justly proud. 
Indeed it is honorable and gratifying to descend from those who 
built our Nation. 

1810 Census, Luzerne Co., 
Bridgewater Twp.: 

Strickling, Jonathan 
·1 Male 16-26 
1 Male >45 
1 Female >45 
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1820 census, Susquehanna co. 
Springville Twp.: 

Strickland Jr, 
2 Male <10 

2 Male 
1 Male 
1 Female 

Jonathan 

10-1~ 
45+ 
10-16 

1830 Census, Susquehanna Co. 
Springville Twp.: 

Strickland Jr, 
1 Male 
2 Male 
3 Male 
1 Male 
4 Female 
1 Female 

Jonathan 
10-15 
15-20 
20-30 
50-60 
20-30 
20-30 



Strickland Family 

GALUSHA 

A. 

GROW 
1924· 1907 

Galusha A. Grow was one of Susquehanna County's 
most prominent citizens. Probably the most imponant pan 
of his career was the time he spent working with the U.S. 
government to pass laws that would help pioneers buy 
land in unsettled territories so they could build new homes 
and communities. Some of the knowledge and e"'i>erience 
he used to accomplish this-for he was very successful-he 
gained as a child. 

Galusha Grow was born in Ashford, CT in 1824. By 
the time he was 10 his father had died. and he and his five 
brothers and sisters were living scattered among relatives. 
In 1834, his mother made a hard deci-sion: She packed 
her few possessions and three of her children into an ox­
drawn cart and traveled westward with other neighbors. 
looking for new opponunities with high hopes. 

Mrs. Grow and her children settled in Lenox Town­
ship, Susquehanna County. Eventually the three other 
children joined them, and the family bought and lived on 
a fann. Galusha worked hard, as did everyone, to build up 
the new community. He worked in the fields, he worked 
in the store his mother opened in town. and he rafted lum­
ber down the Susquehanna River to sell in Maryland. 

At a Lime when most children stopped going to 
school before they were 14, Galusha went as long as he 
could. From his local one-room school house, he went to 
Franklin Acadamy in Susquehanna County (1838-1840) 
and then Amherst College in Amherst, MA (1840-1844). 

There were few law schools in 1844, and attending 
one was not required in order to become a lawyer. But law 
studies with a practicing lawyer was require~ and Galu­
sha came back home after college graduation to study law. 
He did so in Montrose in the office ofF.B. Streeter and 
was admitted to the Susquehanna County Bar Association 
in April 1847. 

He practiced law for a few years, but soon served his 
community on a different level. His career was fast-paced 
and entwined with how the United States, as a young 
country, worked to shape its future. 

Galusha Grow was elected to Congress to represent 

! 

should be allowed and if it should be allowed. He was 26 
years old. the youngest member of Congress, had strong 
ideas on the issues, and was destined to tum his ideas into 
a national law, the Homestead Act of 1862. When he left 
Congress in 1863, he was Speaker of the House. 

His twel\'c years of Congressional service extended 
through a most important period of the republic. The 
repeal of the Missouri Compromise, election of Banks [as 
House] Speaker, the Kansas troubles, Lecompton Bill, the 

. Homestead Bill, the Pacific Railroad, etc, as well as the 
Fremont and Lincoln campaigns, and the first two years 
of the Rebellion. He served on the Committee on Indian 
Affairs and on Territories. and was [Democratic} chair­
man of the latter when the Republicans had a majority in 
the House, during the Speakership of Banks and 
Pennington, which embraced the whole Kansas trouble. 

After Mr. Grow left Congress he spent many years 
traveling around the country. He hadn't left politics for 
good, however. Upon his return to Pennsylvania in 1875, 
and until his death he followed the politics of his county, 
state, and country closely, campaigning for those he 
supported and even running himself again, for the Senate 
in 1881 (an election he lost). 

He is buried in the family plot in Harford, PA. 

The Homestead Act 

Efforts to pass a Homestead Act began as early 
as 1845. Such an Act would provide land held by the 
U.S. Government in the public domain in the West to 
settlers for free. Because of the national tension over 
slavery, attempts were made by some lo outlaw slavery 
in any public lands given lo settlers. Southerner slave­
owners did not like this, because the amount of land 
where slavery was allowed would soon be a small 
percentage of the country, and then probably be 
outlawed there as well. This argument kept the Act 
from being passed. 

Then entered Galusha Grow. He devoted his 
entire 12 years in Congress toward passing the Act. In 
its final· form, it gave a clear title lo 160 acres to 
anyone who met the criteria of (1) living on that land 
continuously and making improvements on it for five 
years and (2) being a U.S. citizen or having filed a 
Declaration of Intention to become a citizen, (3) being 
twenty-one years of age and tl1c head of a household, 
and ( 4) never having borne arms against the United 
States. 

Pennsylvania's Twelfth District in 1851, a time when citi- This Act allowed thousands of people to own 
zcns throughout the country were de-bating and quarrel- their own homes and propeny and opened up vast 
ing over serious questions about slavery and where it areas in the West for development 
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OCCGS PEFERENCE ONLY' 
IMMIGRANT ANCESTORS 

of 

JONATHAN STRICKLAND 

John Slater 
Nathan Gillett 
Thomas Holcomb 

Thomas Sherwood 
Edward Chapman 
Edward Shepard 

JONATHAN STRICKLAND JR 

his wife 

POLLY SUTTON 

their children: 

Asa Strickland 
George Strickland 
Eliza Rosencrants 
Amanda Osterhout 

Mahala (Ball) Rhinevault 
Rebekah Prichard 
Edward Strickland 

Jonathan Strickland 3rd 
Elisha Strickland 

Seth Stowe Strickland 

When Jeremiah Rosencrants came to Springville, in 1807, he 
brought his father with him . The father was also Jeremiah 
Rosencrants, a native of Holland, who came to Massachusetts, then 
moved to Connecticut, where he was married. He finally settled in 
Dingman Township, Pike County, PA, where he was engaged in mill 
work and lumbering. He had three sons: Jeremiah junior born about 
1 772 , who married Sally (Sarah) Strickland; Jonathan born in 1775; 
and Samuel. The elder Jeremiah Rosencrants died in Springville 
Township, in 1828. Records show in the Wyoming County Historical 
Soc. that this latter Jeremiah Rosencrants had a wife, Rebecca 
VanGordon. Also, that Volney D. Rosencrants married Sarah Burnett 
on 9 February 1845, and Charles B. Rosencrants married Annie Baker 
on 14 December 1878 in Tunkhannock. 

Children of Eliza Strickland and Jeremiah Rosencrants buried 
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with them in the Eaton Cemetery: 
Sarah died 1 2 December 1830, aged 1-5-3 (born about 9 July 

1829) 
Francis F. Rosencrants died 1 October 1851, aged 7-6-2 (born 

about 30 March 1844) 

Samuel Rosencrants, son of Sally Strickland and Jeremiah 
Rosencrants, married 6 August 1824 to SARAH MARCY, daughter to 
Eunice Spencer and Colonel Abel Marcy of Tunkhannock. Sarah was 
born 11 January 1806 in Tunkhannock. They moved to Ohio. Abel 
Marcy was a lumberman, owned saw mills and grist mills as did 
Samuel Rosencrants. 

The new D.A.R. Patriot Index, volume 3, page 2517, lists a 
Jeremiah Rosekrans (born 1758 in PA, and died 1842; married Sally 
Strickland, private PA) as a soldier. We asked the National 
Society to send us the i nformation used in accepting this line. 
Mrs. Myrtie E. Rosengrant deMois (wife of Dr. F.A. deMois) of 
Allentown, PA, a member of Liberty Bell Chapter 77 in Allentown, 
used the service of Jeremiah Rosekrans as a supplemental line, 
which was approved 28 September 1909. Under Ancestor's service she 
gave the information that Jeremiah Rosekrans at the time of the 
American Revolution lived in Upper Smithfield Township, Northampton 
County, PA, and that in 1782 was in the Third Company Fifth 
Battalion; and in 1784, was a sergeant in Captain Jacob Dewitt's 
Company (Pennsylvania Archives, Fifth Series, Volume 8, page 409). 

Mrs. deMois said that her family changed the surname from 
Rosekrans to Rosengrant to eliminate the Dutch pronunciation and 
spelling. She gave the birth year as 1758 for Jeremiah, and 1762 
birth year for Sally, and that they were married in 1784. She 
records eight children for them, five of whom are the same as those 
listed in Stocker (page 397) under the surname of Rosencrants. 

The problem with this lineage is that Jeremiah Rosekrans 
junior born 1788 (died 19 June 1856), married in 1823, Sophia 
Billings (born 24 July 1804 and died 16 April 1878). These people 
are buried in Lynn Cemetery and were residents of Springville much 
of their lives. This Jeremiah Junior, husband of Sophia, is of a 
different family and one that uses the surname Rosengrant. 

This error is due to a merger of two distinctly different 
families into one, disregarding the surname spelling, and adjusting 
dates. No other D. A. R. member has used this line and we have 
written National Society to reject all further use of it, unt i l it 
is decided just who and which Jeremiah Rosencrants was the 
Revolutionary Soldier. Stocker confirms (page 401) that Jere miah 
Rosencrants junior, son of Sally Strickland, married his first 
cousins : Eliza and Mahala Strickland for wives and not Sophia 
Billings . 

Luc y E. Gray, daughte r of Elvira Rosencrants and Ol i vers S. 
Gray, appears in the Bradf ord County census records . In 1850, she 
is in Standing St o ne Township with her parents. She gives her age 
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as eighteen years. In 1860, she is in Leraysville, Pike Township, 
and her husband's name is given as Daniel Merrill, aged 25 years, 
born in New York State. Their daughter, Mary Helen is aged three 
years. 

Lucy (Gray) Merrill was married second at Auburn . Center, 
Auburn Township, this county, on 8 August 1864, by Abram Waltman, 
J.P., to Harlan w. Gates (not Harlow w. Gates as given in the 
Commemorative Biographical Record, page 176 3 ) • Gates was a veteran 
of the Civil War, having served in Company H, 141st Regiment, 
Pennsylvania Volunteers. In his pension papers, the name of Lucy's 
first husband is given twice as David Merrill, and that he died in 
Owego, Tioga county, New York, 30 December 1862. 

Harlan w. Gages was born in Dimock Township, this county, 
about 1839, a son of Elizabeth Baker and George Gates, and a 
grandson of Captain Elijah B. Gates and of Joseph Baker. He 
enlisted in the Civil war, 3 August 1862, at Montrose for three 
years. His papers show that he was dark complexion, dark eyes, 
black hair, 5 feet, 11 1/2 inches tall, weight 230 pounds. While 
on a march from Harrisburg and Camp Curtin, to Washington, D.C., 
the Company crossed the long bridge across the Potomac from 
Alexandria Heights, his foot went through a hole in the boardwalk 
and the injury was such that he had to drop out of the march. He 
was sent to Cliffbourne General Hospital in Washington, where he 
was a patient for several weeks, then was sent to a Convalescent 
camp outside of Washington. He was discharged from the service 
with complete disability on 6 December 1862. 

Gates applied for a pension at once under Act of 14 July 1862 
and was rejected 11 April 1864. He applied again under Act of 3 
March 1873, and was again rejected. He made application a third 
time under the act of 1883. His case mentioned injury to his leg 
causing varicose veins, rheumatism on the right side of his body, 
his lungs were affected and he raised quantities of blood. He was 
unable to walk and could not support himself. His case was pending 
when he died at Dimock, 9 June 1888. At his death, the poormasters 
of Dimock Township had been supporting him for a number of years. 
The Captain of his company, Casper w. Tyler, and the Colonel of the 
regiment, Henry J. Madill, and John W. Cobb, M.D., who was the 
examining physician at enlistment all agreed that his request for 
pension was a valid one. 

H.W. Gates was unable to work most of his life, and his wife, 
Lucy, had to find employment to support herself. Under the federal 
pension act of 27 June 1890, she was granted a widow's pension on 
29 July 1890, at eight dollars per month. This amount continued to 
be paid to her until her death. Her husband had no money at any 
time nor any real estate or personal property whatever to leave 
her. 

H.W. Gates was in Montrose attending a large political rally, 
16 October 1858, which was not a peaceful assembly of people. Fou_r 
half-drunken rowdies assaulted Gates and the ruffians exhausted him 
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almost to unconsciousness, then one of them jumped on his leg and 
broke it. When arrested they pleaded a case of mistaken identity, 
and they did not know Gates. Dr. A.C. Blakeslee of Nicholson was 
in the crowd and proceeded to set the broken limb and attended him 
for five to six weeks. This was the same rally when some bad boys 
tampered with the cannon in Montrose which was to be fired. 
Instead, when ignited, the cannon exploded and Crawford Titus of 
Harford, this county, was instantly killed. His brother, David 
Titus, assisting, had his right arm torn from his shoulder in the 
same explosion. Fortunately, Dr. Blakeslee was able to save him 
from bleeding to death. 

The War Department in the District of Columbia tried to prove 
that Gates' leg problem was due to this lowly brawl in Montrose, 
but they were unsuccessful. After being denied a pension in 1864, 
he attempted to enlist again, this time in Battery H, First 
Pennsylvania Light Artillery, under Captain William Parke of 
Dimock. Gates was examined, passed, but was not called to be sworn 
in the Company. 

Elvira and Oliver s. Gray had a third daughter, Sarah, who is 
listed in the 1850 census previously mentioned. She was aged three 
years and probably did not survive childhood. 

At the death of o.s. Gray he left eight children, and the 
family was broken and children were scattered. Jeremiah and Jonas 
apprenticed themselves to farmers in Bradford County. Lucy and 
Will came to East Rush and lived with their uncle, A.W. Gray. 
Robert and Silas went to live with their uncle, J.W. Gray, in 
Dimock Township. Mary and Sarah stayed with their mother who had 
to find employment. They were poor and had to depend on the 
generosity of others to find good homes. However, they fared well 
in life. 

************* 

Additional Information on the Tuttle Family, mentioned. 

Ezra Tuttle was born in Wallingford, Connecticut, 20 March 
1768 and went early with his father, Zophar Tuttle, to Vermont, 
when Ezra was very young. Ezra married in Vermont, 1 June 1787, 

· Rebecca Thomas who was born 7 March 1766 and died in Springville, 
30 December 1842. They left Weathersfield, Windsor County, 
Vermont, in February 1801, with six children, and in March, 1801, 
arrived in Springville. He bought his land under the Connecticut 
title, paying three hundred dollars for three hundred acres. Later 
he had to pay Henry Drinker five hundred dollars in order to have 
a secure deed to the same land. 

Ezra Tuttle erected the first frame house in Springville 
Township, and he and his sons cleared two hundred fifty acres of 
their land holdings. He constructed a large part of the Wilkes­
Barre Turnpike between Tunkhannock and Montrose. He lived and died 
very highly respected. Much information about him is in print. He 
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MATER.HAL LINEAGE OF JONATHAN STRICKLAND senior 
The SLATER Family 

I JOHN SLATER immigrant (name spelled sometimes in the ancient 
records as Slaughter, which appeared as late as 
1709). He was born in England, about 1640. He 

died in Simsbury, Connecticut, 13 May 1713, aged about 73 years. 
His will is dated 15 August 171~, and proved 6 July 1713. John 
Slater was often employed as recorder of deeds, assisted in 
settling estates, and may have been town clerk. 

John Slater was married 15 July 1669 in Windsor, Connecticut, 
to Mrs. Abiah (Gillett) Bartlett, daughter of Nathan Gillett, and 
relict of Elisha Bartlett. Abiah Gillett was born 22 August 1641 
in Windsor, and died 21 November 1716, aged 75 years. They were 
among the first settlers of Simsbury. Their six children are 
recorded in Simsbury: 

1. John Slater junior born 21 February 1669/70 
2. Thomas Slater born 13 August 1672 
3. Elizabeth Slater born 1 June 1675 
4. Samuell Slater born 7 October 1677 
5. Elias Slater born 21 June 1680 
6. Rebekah Slater born 11 July 1682 

died 12 April 1700 

NATHAN GILLETT 

Nathan Gillett, father of Mrs. Abiah Slater, above, immigrant, 
came to this country with his brother Jonathan Gillett. They were 
sons of the Rev. William Gyllett, rector of Chaffcombe, 
Somersetshire, England, whose will was probated in Taunton, 
England, in 1641. In this will he mentions the above brothers as 
his sons and that they were in New England. 

Nathan Gillett was first in Dorchester, Massachusetts, 1634, 
but moved to Windsor, Connecticut, the next year, and later he went 
to Simsbury, where his wife died 21 February 1670. There is no 
record of the name of his wife in the usual sources. They had nine 
children who are recorded in the Windsor Vital Records. The second 
child was Abiah who married John Slater. 

Nathan Gillett had a grant from the Connecticut Colony of 50 
acres of land, 12 October 1671 for his service in the Pequot War. 

II JOHN SLATER junior, the oldest child, was born 21 February 
1669/70, in Simsbury. He was married at age 35 
years, on 10 March 1703/4, to Mrs. Elizabeth 
(Holcomb) case, daughter to Ruth Sherwood and Joshua 
Holcomb, and relict of William Case, who was a son 
of John Case. 

When John Slater junior married, he acquired at once, a wife 
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died 9 March 1826. Six of his children were born in Weathersfield: 
1. Abiathar Tuttle born 29 March 1788 

married Jane Rosencrants 
2. Sylvia Tuttle born 11 February 1790 

married Augustin Wells Carrier 
3. Sabrina Tuttle born 4 May 1792 

married Benajah McKenzie 
4. Benoni Tuttle born 5 November 1793 

married Susan Rosencrants 
5. Betsey Tuttle born 6 November 1796 

married Samuel Sutton junior 
6. Achsah Tuttle born 26 March 1799 

married George Strickland 
Two children were born in Springville: 

7. Myron Tuttle born 2 May 1802, the first white birth in 
Springville Township married Calista Thomas 

8. John Tuttle born 5 June 1804, died 20 Sept. 1804 
aged three months and fifteen days 

John is not mentioned in any of the family records. He is listed 
here as his gravestone identifies him as a son of Rebecca and Ezra 
Tuttle. He was the first burial in the present Lynn Cemetery, 
Springville Township and has the oldest gravestone standing in the 
cemetery at this time. 

Abiathar Tuttle's grandchildren: 
1. John Tuttle married 11 February 1847, Sarah Gray who was 

born 25 August 1823. They had six children: 
Abiathar A.B. Tuttle born 5 March 1848 
Jennie Tuttle born 17 June 1849 
Steppen Tuttle born 23 November 1851 
Mary Tuttle born 3 March 1853 
James Tuttle born 1 July 1855 
Sophrona Tuttle born 31 January 1859 

2. Stephen Tuttle died unmarried in st. Paul, Minnesota 
3. Edward P. Tuttle married 20 March 1860, Susannah E. Moore 

of Wayne County, Pennsylvania. He was a business man in White 
Haven, Pennsylvania, a Justice of the Peace, in real estate and 
insurance, where he lived and where his family and parents are 
buried. They had six children born in White Haven: 

Lucia A. Tuttle 
Edward w. Tuttle 
Mabel w. Tuttle 
Sally H. Tuttle 
Hannah M. Tuttle 
Grover G. Tuttle 

4. Sarah Rebecca Tuttle born 23 November 1824, married James 
L. Winder born 8 November 1824. They had four children: 

Edward Winder born 5 November 1849 
died 5 March 1871 

Harry Winder born about 1853 in Pennsylvania, had a wife, 
Calista A. born c 1856 in Illinois; and two 
children: Edward L. born 1877; and Fred H. 
born 1879. 

Walter c. Winder, aged 16 in 1880, born in Minnesota. 
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and seven step-children who were under the age of fifteen. (Quite 
a bargain). John was administrator of the estate of William Case, 
in the right of his wife, Elizabeth and the minor children. The 
estate included 247 pounds value of the real estate. 

Deacon John Slater died 2 May 1717, in Simsbury, and left two 
sons and two daughters he had fathered by Elizabeth. His widow had 
control of all of the property from her two husbands and appears 
often in the Simsbury deeds including some land to Edward 
Strickland. Elizabeth died in Simsbury 7 November 1737. She had 
been baptized in Windsor, 4 April 1670 and was declared to have 
been 20 years old in 1690. Children of Elizabeth and John Slater: 

1. Reuben Slater 
2. Marah Slater 
3. John Slater 
4. Rebekah Slater born 29 February 1710 (1710 was not a leap­

year!) She married 22 July 1734, EDWARD STRICKLAND. 

HOLCOMB Family 

1. Thomas Holcomb immigrant, was born in England about 1600, 
probably in Devonshire, and came to America on the ship Mary & John 
in 1630. He settled first in Dorchester, and in 1636, went with 
the first company to Windsor, Connecticut. He was very prominent 
in town and colonial affairs to his death 7 September 1657, aged 
about 57 years. 

Thomas Holcomb was married about 1632 to Mrs. Elizabeth Fergu­
son, who had qome on the same ship with him from England. They had 
ten children and she died in Simsbury, Connecticut, 7 October 1679. 

2. Joshua Holcomb, the fourth child, was born in Windsor, 7 
April 1640, and baptized there 27 September 1640. He was married 
4 June 1663 to Ruth Sherwood, daughter to Mary and Thomas Sherwood. 
Three of their children are recorded in Windsor, and about 1669 the 
family moved to Simsbury where seven children were born. Joshua 
Holcomb died in Simsbury, 1 December 1690 and his estate papers 
list ten children, including: Elizabeth Holcomb born 4 April 1670 
and married John Slater junior. Ruth (Sherwood) Holcomb survived 
her husband and administered his estate. 

THOMAS SHERWOOD 

Thomas Sherwood came to Boston from England in 1624 in the 
ship Frances, perhaps from London, with his wife, Alice, by whom he 
had eight children. In Connecticut they lived in Wethersfield, 
Stamford and Fairfield where they settled in 1648. He married 
second, Mary, and had four more children. Thomas Sherwood died in 
1655, leaving a will dated 21 July 1655 and proven 25 October 1655. 
Mary left a will dated 6 January 1693/4 and proven 13 March 1693/4. 
Ruth Holcomb is mentioned in both wills. Ruth Holcomb died 10 
September 1699. 
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EDWARD CHAPMAN 

EDWARD CHAPMAN, immigrant, was married in England, to 
Elizabeth Fox (date and place not located). She was a niece of 
Deacon Henry Clark of Windsor, Connecticut, and received in his 
will, in 1675, a farm in Simsbury, where she lived. The farm had 
previously been owned by the Rev. Mr. Ephraim Huit at his death in 
1661. Ephraim Huit was an uncle to Henry Clark. 

Edward Chapman was made a freeman in 1667 when he joined the 
church. He died 19 December 1675 of wounds when the Indians attack 
the Narragansett Fort in what was known as the Great Swamp Fight. 

The inventory in the estate of Edward Chapman showed one 
hundred eighty-four pounds, ten shilling, the widow was allotted 
sixty-one pounds, son Henry, thirty pounds, son Simon eighteen 
pounds, and fifteen pounds was given to each of his five daughters. 
The widow had the children baptized after their father's death, 27 
April 1677, and she joined the church the next day. They had nine 
children. 

Elizabeth Chapman married second, 12 July 1677 to Captain 
Samuel Cross, a son of William Cross, an early settler of Windsor, 
in 1644. Samuel Cross operated her farm and added several other 
parcels of land to it. They had several children. He died 6 
November 1707. 

Elizabeth, daughter of Elizabeth and Edward Chapman, was born 
in Simsbury, Connecticut, 15 January 1667, and married 11 December 
1684, JOSEPH $TRICKLAND of Hartford, Connecticut, son to Elizabeth 
Shepard and Thwaite Strickland. 

EDWARD SHEPARD 

EDWARD SHEPARD, immigrant, was married in England, his wife's 
name was Violet. They had five children, four of whom were born in 
England. They came to New England and settled in Cambridge, 
Massachusetts, where he was made a freeman, 10 May 1643. He had a 
daughter, Sarah, who was baptized in Braintree. 

The children were: 
1. John Shepard 
2. Elizabeth Shepard who married Twhaite Strickland 
3. Abigail Shepard who married Daniel Pond 
4. Deborah Shepard who married Jonathan Fairbanks 
5. Sarah Shepard who died 15 January 1680, aged 43 years. 

Married Samuel Tomson. 
Edward Shepard married second, Mary, widow of Robert Pond, of 

Dorchester, by whom he probably had no children. Violet died 9 
January 1649. Edward Shepard made his will 1 October 1674. He 
spent most of his life in Cambridge. 

V1 JONATHAN STRICKLAND junior, son to Susannah Stowe and Jonathan 
Strickland, senior, was born 21 October 1772, 
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probably in Norfolk, Litchfield County, Connecticut, and died in 
Springville Township, Susquehanna County, Pennsylvania, 3 March 
1853, aged 80-4-13, buried in the Lynn Cemetery, Springville 
Township. He was probably not the oldest son in his parents' 
family, members of the family have suggested that two older sons 
eventually settled in Easton, PA. Jonathan junior lived near his 
father all of the latter's life and was engaged with him in mill 
work. Jonathan junior came to Springville, in 1808, and settled on 
the plateau of the elevation now called "Strickland Hill" in 
Springville Township. 

Jonathan Strickland junior bought his farm of Henry Drinker's 
Estate, deed recorded in Luzerne County. Later he and his wife, 
Mary, sold this farm for one dollar, 7 December 1830, to their son, 
George Strickland for yearly support. This is the only deed on 
record in the Susquehanna County Courthouse with the names of 
Jonathan and Mary Strickland as grantors. (Deed Book 8, p. 344) 

[The executors and heirs of Henry Drinker Sr.'s estate sold 
his property and holdings in this area by three methods: 1. If the 
full purchase was paid at one time, a deed was given the same day. 
2. Property sold with a down payment, yearly payments with 
interest on principal dictated, a mortgage was recorded, and any 
default, the property reverted to the grantor. When the full 
amount of the purchase, and all interest on the debt paid, a deed 
was issued. 3. A contract was written agreement, in which the 
squatter was required to pay a yearly rent for living on the land. 
If an agreement had been made as to purchase price, a payment could 
be made on the land, receipt taken. When all indebtedness was paid 
in full, a d~ed was given. Purchase on a contract was the usual 
procedure in the areas where there was doubt about the owner's 
title. In some sections of our county large strips of land had not 
been sold by the land office to any "land jobber," and purchasers 
were careful to give money only to the rightful owner. The Drinker 
Estate bought up most of "unowned" land and this caused the 
squatters to be evicted or pay up. Court records in this county 
prove that problems were caused for the tenants.] The Stricklands 
always had money to pay for their land as soon as they selected 
what they wanted. 

Jonathan Strickland junior was married in Orange County, New 
York, 9 April 1795 to Mary (Polly) Sutton, who was born in Sussex 
County, New Jersey, 27 January 1774, and died in Lathrop Township 
at the home of her son, Asa Strickland, 2 September 1866, aged 92-
7-6. The place of her burial is not known and no gravestone has 
been located for her. The family story is that her son, George 
Strickland, refused to give her a home with him after his family 
died, even though the deed to his property guaranteed her yearly 
support. She remarried to have a home and it is thought that she 
was a Mary Williams when she died, but no record of a marriage has 
been found. Diligent search has been made to find the names of her 
parents and their ancestry, but all attempts to date have failed. 
A great amount of speculation has been suggested but proof has been 
lacking. 
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Strickland Family 

OCCGSREFERENCEONLY 
Polly Strickland lived with her oldest son, Asa, in her 

declining years. She and her son prepared a family record as far 
as their memories could go. She gave birth dates for herself, 
husband, and their children, with her son's assistance. This has 
formed the basis for the record given here. We were privileged to 
make a copy of this record some three score of years ago, and it is 
given here: 

1. Asa Strickland born 10 April 1796 
married Betsey (Shaw) Ball 

2. George Strickland born 9 November 1797 
married Achsah Tuttle 2nd Sarah E. Orr 

3. Eliza Strickland born 18 November 1799 
married Jeremiah Rosencrants junior 

4. Amanda Strickland born 3 July 1801 
married Hiram Osterhout 

5. Mahala Strickland born 22 May 1803 
married James B. Ball 2nd John Rhinevault 

6. Rebecca Strickland born 10 May 1806 
married Leonard Prichard 

7. Edward Strickland born 2 February 1808 
married Mary Louisa Knight 

' The above children were born Shohola Falls, Pike Co., Pa. 

8. Jonathan Strickland tertius born 21 October 1810 
married Rosalinda Capron 2nd Catherine Iler 

9. Elisha Strickland born 1 January 1812 
married Margaret Bond 

10. Seth Stowe Strickland born 14 February 1816 
married Mary Ann ? 

After 1808, Jonathan Strickland junior was a farmer. He 
bargained for several large farms in the area of Strickland Hill, 
and helped his sons pay for them and deeds were issued in the sons' 
name. Thus each son said they had part of the original homestead. 
For some thirty years there were no other families on the Hill but 
Stricklands. At this time there are no Stricklands living on the 
Hill. However there are those of other surnames who have descended 
from Jonathan Strickland senior. 

The above family record in the original, as given above, was 
quite complete. Later added to it was the complete family record 
of Asa Strickland which is given next. It is indeed fortunate that 
these records have survived and are available for this account of 
Stricklands. Perhaps no other copy of it is known to exist. 

(To Be Continued) 
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